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The following is a transcriptice of some tapes that were sade scmetiae in
Septenber ©F 1977, It was late at night and a few of ue were sitting arowmd,
talking., Jim rarely talls apout hinsel! in a personal sense, but that night
he started talking, and coptinued for severn] hours, We were fortunate enough
to get it down oo tape. 1o trunecribing the material, I've left it pretty much
mnedited, sxcept to try to indicate topics or clarify transitions in subject

matier etc. ] left Jia's syntax , language eic. ss is, and 1 hope that these
pages will help ©OGVEY BOBe idesn, or better yet, some “"foel” for Jim as a
persan.

Be began, withowt imtroduction, by talking about some of his experiences as

an créerly at Heid Nesmorial Hospital in Richmond, Indiana. He was about 16 at
the time 50 it must have been around 1947, From there he wenti op to talk about
some of his high school and chlldhood axperiences, and then his introduction to
the church, the holarthy pericd stc. .

EELD MENCRIAL

*Ip that hospital I did mere shit than you'll ever know.. I atole rich pecple'’s
medicine and gave it to poor people. You had to charge peopie for the medicine
beck thet. 1 worked myself to death trying to be ap egalitarian So that place.
FPeople would go hroke, lose their homes, and insurance wus very rure. S0 I'd
take the fucking rich people's stuff... I'd run three floors to get some kind of
hesrt medicline for somebody oo the fivst floor o 1 didn't have o put 4% oo his
bill, Then catich hell from the head nurse far not giving him his medicine.
Because if the chart said I gave hinm his medicine they'd charge, 1 took risks.
I took risks that were formidable for a kid of sixteen. Must have done snough
in diligence and good work, must have done snough to let me get by with some of
the shit. Of course, they d1dn't have & good record keeping systea, that got mcre
intricate as time went on. ] was the cmuse of 1tl They couldn't find cut what the
hell was going on io Mard B. Ward B was the poor peoples ward.

"What the hell is this that there’s no more madicine cost in Ward B than thia?
There ought 10 be moTe coat than this..."

5c¢ they startad putting & charge for every goddaan thing. They'd charge for everrthing.
Catherisation=-you bad to charge them, tubewyou had to charge thes, even fucking tape
you had to charge. Ah, shit—l1 pever chargad them for a fucking thing. The poar
fever got charged. And 1'd double the rich, .

1 think the head Burss finally oaught oo to me. But she coverwd.

“The books are alancing” she’d say, = he projected income figures for karch
{ I remeaber the month was March) are the ." And she'd look over at me.
A great blg, oig vatholic womarn.She ctnvert me. che must've been & leshian
t00. Une time she salo to ma1™] hate YW dec 't grow up to be like otheo
Beun.” put she was good to me, and I ® W8 & Dice gal.Bigger than a goddasn
tank, she was & bull. Feople ware soarsd of that woman. When she walked , ahe
Walked like a goddamn tank, And there prejudice against Catholics, do you know,
that 1 got condemned for aasociating with woman. Karrow fucking world I lived in.
HASE. You can't kpow what it's like to grow in Maspville. Goddamr §1's awful. Hated
Catholics,heted Jews, hated Blacks, and 1 sssoclated with everyone. Feople just dian't
now what the hall to do with me.

But this woman, she was good to me. Ghe recoumended me, and 1 became head crderly
of oxyge thernpy because of her. 1 went to Catholic Mass because of har. I tnought,
“this womar's got something.” Bhe wms good. I don't remember all she ald, mostly
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e hell I remesber of ber gooanesk. Bhe covered ior me. and
she knew 1 wms doing that shit. Ubviously she knew I waan't getting anything out of it.

Bhe , "well, you ought to be a (hristian.” ] said, “I am.” She maid, * You
don;t belong to the univarsal Chwrch.” She was takking about the Catholic church of
difn*t Xoow the goddaar: wnd “catholic® meant “universall

1 41
1 went to Mass. And that fucking mriest ws 30 fucking cruel.] went about two or

¢ warath at all. Like sombies wmlking in s row.

him., 1 went back to that carner-— Saint hary's church-- snd pisssd in
it into the holy wmtexr. Well, they got rituslised with =y piss

t st e i 4 i .

Jus P!‘u‘a,}ufvomtg &:kczvd._ﬂhoem it wms, the saxton or some

I was laughing about, you'd laugh t00."™ That was so
of » dipping in =y piss. 1 thought, "God, if
dead, 0r certainly out of touch with .Your Fecpls

wha
fucking funny. Must've bees fifty
’ (1.
thase pecple that they were being snnointad with my piss.”
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My high school... Coddamn principal. Mr, Price, I think, 4 goddawn bigot, Coe
horse achool, Lynn High School. he did something, 1 can't remeseber,.. I put a
goddanr, donkey in the assenbly. I run & donkey wup the stairs. e had a public asseably

where all the students had their deaks together, pinth through twelvih. And that
goddamn donkey and & whole herd of goats, I brought my whole berd of goats in there,
Loosed thes in that fucking assembly, and they ate the books, mhit ob the deaks.

It ms Bedlan. That son of & bitch, he did something, but 1 dan’t remeaber wat he
did to cause that.

Ther finally ope tesacher who wan't so—humpne-—— cepterwc more oo me. A teacher
whe sade fun of my tnability to write well. I couldn't write fast snough. No, the
workbook »aan't pept encugh,that was it. Bo then she started on this little girl
back there, behind me, who wore long wool socks.She turned oo that girl, maid
*Dor't you have any new mocks to wear? You doo't el them emough.”™ And that was it.
Bhe went too far, It started with me, tut when she picked om that poor girl, I got
incensed with her, And then =he hragged on this prisey assed Charles Wesley, a rich
kid who couldn‘t tie his ovn shoe laces. "His workbook's so neat...” And then whe
said,” These workbooks al] have to be in, because I canrot grage you without thes.”

I thought, " Ok biten, you sure done told too much now.”,

Bo 1 stayed in mchool and hid out in the clothes closet, 1 waited until there were
no more sounds and 1 went out and stole svery goddamn workbook I could find,

The naxt day) "‘hirteer workbooks aissing! What's going oo here!”

The place waz in an uproar. Feople were crying and all, and I figure I got to get
thex all, ¢ I kept 1t up for five nights til 1 got the last fucking workbook,
Devartated her. She wmp just mick. She was frenzied. She oalled the principal and he said
“i'Ll bave n lie detector test on this! I'li oring in the police! I'm going to find
out who this thief is, this is ridiculous. You can't disrupt a school like this!"”

1 just loved it. Fuckang shit didn't mean nothing to me.

“Uoe of you did this® be smid, and he looked at mé becauss be wms aluays looking
at me.

1 maid, "Mine's gooe too a0 don't look xy way.” The bitch bad a wary sys oo me
100, But Uat son of & bitch principel be Trought in somerbody with & uniform=- 1
don't knos who the son of & bitch was~and I was a little nervous. ALl those goddamn
workbooks gone, teath grade workbooks. They said, “It's somebody in the tenth gradel”
Be I stole all the sleventh grade workbooks...

The grading aystem wae norrible. It correlatec witn the class system. They Tlnked
the poor and the rich got by, That's what sade a Commumist out of me—— you grov into
it by little things. S0 1 stule the tenth and eleventh grade warkbooks, and they brought
in this fucking constable, And he shows this contraption and mays ,*This is & test up
here.® This goddamn thing, got wires all over it... " You won'i pass the tasi if
you're lying.”

1 thought, “Ch mhit. This is it.”

I got An the goddamn line, and for some reason—- 1t mustve phoney bulishi
because they quit about the elghth or ninth ane. I guess they playing %y
testing us. That principal like to édled== he wms it to be tied,

1 wmlked through the school— whistling. Mrs. MacFarland calied me over.

1 said, "*hat you wnt?”

Ehe sald, “Jim Jones, there is only gpe person in this entire school with the intellfgence
10 cause this Kind of confusion.™ snd she winked at me, and went an down the haull,

That principal had told me 1 was too dunb 10 go to collage too. It was sheer cruelty.
He called me into his office and mald, "Jiony, I set you have written down here that
you want 0 go to coliege. You're pot college material.” Christ that crushec ae.

Ita awful 1o feel duab. And he about persusded me for & momsnt thare.

Krs. Macrarland, she ghowed me the first kindness, the first tenderness. She asked,

" Ate you planning opn going to coliage?”

* I doe’t know shat you're talking about™ I sald.

Bbe suid, " You §im, you should go to college. Anybosy bri ghi snough to throw the

sotire school into such pendemcoius — you should go to college.*™

Bhe ms sgninst the system. I don't know to what extent, but she wms & maverick, She
wore pant suits. They firsd har, Ip those days in Lynn a woman teacher did not get
mrried and did not date. I came up under a rigid systea. If & wvomen teacher gos merTied
or wms oaught dating, she was finighed.

I went into her class and sade An A. Finished the course in two, three wesks.
Typing. 1 typed so fucking fast, just because of her faith in me. After & few eeks she
waid, "You're finished.™ I'd run through all the goddamn books. Went after hours. She
was the first one Lo turn me oo to education. Then they fired her, and 1 cried and I
cried and I cried... 80 1 put gravel in Price's gas tank. The 0ld son of a bitch ruined
his car. It's a wonder he didn't die of a atroke. Gravel and malt. I know he wished

Jis Jones had gever besn borm. He pever of course figiced out it was me, but the inkling
e T R B '

He I her and of school. I wouldn't study for anybody, I doo't kmow
bow Jong. It mo killed me, I loved that woman. I admired her. I think I had & erush on

beer a1l
Juat

hcx.bmuume-agoodtuu.mmImm:fupmpamonngoodion. [ F
was ot vary much known to the poor. Boon after 1 tranaferred to Riehmond, It wes all
mediocricy and I manted oot of theres.
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I datea the girl who ws the school whore, Alwys callad her thati"whore, whore..,”
Cirls always wnted to go out and make it with me, but they didn’t want to be seen in
Ppublic with se. Foor boy. Nobody sver dates Jim Jomes. Bul tney were all ashaxad of her,
being & whore, Well, by that time 1'd gotten a job, that was the last semester. I got
& job during the ysar in Richmond Hospital, hitchhiked back and forth for about five
months, and then 1% muved enough to buy an old car. Al} of & sudden I becsme celebrated.
Money, you know. 1 hedn't dxted one of thome bitches, not since the one who'd hurt
me so bad by fucking a- friend of line.-. Bo 1 thought, well== they &1l said she wms a

s mmd mabadu s T wa wcldbk ks - Ak adnad Ra Shcd Bdhloa? Wha Cawdae Dosm T danl
wnire aod oobldy WRILS g0 with hel W Wie , WAl 48 thatl thing' IThe Senldr Frof. 1 WOK

her. I took that girl=—— and I never had so much joy in &1l my 1life. I took her out
there and we were dancing sround-- all by ourselves. They wll got off the floor. We
danced arcund and arowmd... I wasn't all that mad about her, you know, but goddamn it
to hell, those alserable pukep— they were all a bunch of sneak shits.hypocrites.

All through thell941-1945 era 1 instinctively identifiad with the Soviets. The
Soviets are what turned me on. In the snow, wheo I mas  ten or eleven, I'd alwye
be & Soviet scldier. I'd get my o, an old shet gun, oo lopger workable, and I°d
be rushing through, defending Bussia from invasion. That would be my piay. I was nine
oT ten years old whan the war started. 1 identified sirongly with the Sovietg,
Btalingrad became my idesl. 1 knew more about what was going on than my folks. The
Battle of Stalingrad became intensely important to me. When the Soviets were under
siege, it was intensely personal to me. Thats shere my interest in the Soviet Union
siarted. Sc that led to Communiss. I got out of school, the war’s over, church bells
are ringing, and they started knocking the RBussians. This is one loyal fucker, You
don't twist me and turn me like that. Never has been that wmy. Always, if I'd made a
commnitimert to some pecple, made a comaittment to anybody, I'¢ stand behind that
comnitiment, Now, all of a sudden, the Russians are sons of bitches. I couldn't
buy that. 5o, the more I beard it, the more I studisd what the hell this was all
about. Commmink., I didn’t eveu know what it meant. ] began to read about Kussia.
In the school books I resd something, and then they'd change the schmscl books. kull
out cne text, 1 rememeber , and put another passage in. and I read in there about
Commnisz, and even the way they minted it, I mald " Sounds mighty good to me. Sounds
Righty good to me.”

By the time I got to Richmomé, the last year of high school, I was a Communist.
The Frogressive Farty I kmew wms for Commmism. Wallace i my opinion was a Communist.
Ve were disillusioned, of course, to find out later that he wmm net. I supported
him oo the tasis of his being & Communist. Tramping through the nei@btmhood in
Richmond, Indians, trying to get people to vole the Progressive tickst, I gmmduated
from high school at seventeen. I wmae getting greatly ridiculed by that time for =y
belikfe, I had one teacher who mustve been a Communist-—there were a lot of closet
Communiste in those days. Ehe'd always let me talk my views—- she wouldn't say a
fucking word, but let me defend Progressive Farty views.''We had a mock cammign. I'd
Tepresent tie Progressive Party candidate. Don't remeabar what the idsuen were, hell
1 couldn®t tell you what the iasuss were then, KEgalitarian concerns. Baciss. Feeding the
oppressed. I got an my soap box for Marx, mors Lenin than Mary, 1 didn't know that
much about Karx at thet age, lsll fias Xapital alwys was tough for me. I had to get
ny Communism by other means.

One of ay schooltsachers accused me of being a Commumist., I was talking about it
in English class. She gave me & 1w p::d-. This other taacher mid® Porget it, I
think you can pass ar squivalency test.™ 5o 1 took this test and it qualified me
so I could get into college, 0 1 entered Indians University, und immediately
became an activist. Party organiser.Didn't beiomg to the Farty but I organired people
to join the Farty. Id & lot of work for the Farty.It ws decided, I guess by h.rt:
laq.dernhip that I wms not to join the Farty, I went to a Communist FParty meeting, and
1 don't remsmber who it wes in the cell organisation that sufgested that I pot join the
Party, that I ecould do more good by not joining, Hell, I wmes more ready to btring &
revolution any fucking wmy I could do it. The guy, whoever he was, musive had some
character or 1 wouldnt have taker his advice. 1ts very wague ir my mind, why ] didnt
sign the roll. Almost signed iit, but he said no. Don't become & member of the Farty,
work for the Party. dnd 1 did, Got s hell of a lot of people tc join the CF. Got pecple
to sign-— what the hell was the big petition at that time? Stockhols petitico maybe.
Al]l those things. 1'd chaspion every goddamn one of them. Talked Communisa all the
time. In class, out of class—sverywiere.

The thing that stuck out in xy aind scre thananything in collsge was this class I
hat with & professor Minton. He was, I later lsammed, a conservative, who was trying to
temch political sciesce objectivaely. And he would come into class and say 'Gmtinp
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Two fuckers in his class were PBI. I thought, "this is too much." It made ms

project my views sven more forcefully. Right in the goddamn class. And 1 was
folliowed, Bo they wust have & File. Undoubtably they have 8 hell of a file.

They followed me through the campus, wntil I guess they got tired of following. |,
#olloved me one time to the old house that I lived in, kup down tenement section where
Marcie and I lived. I believe they alsc called her job, and told her-~ you know the
tactic they used,” Do you know she’s marrisd t0 a Communist?™ Marcie didn't know
pelitics. Bhit, in thatl stage she dldn't Jmow shere the hell 1 stood«— she thought I
was going crary, 1 think. She came from & straight, middle class uptringing.

Racist family. hot mean racist, Dut they were racist.

I believe they cailed her job and said I was & Communist. They called her in and
& ve her & bunch of shit and she cake home and asked me. 1 said, ™Tell thea I'm not."
She maid, " 1 dec't know, I doo‘t imow.™ We bad some helluva rows over my ideclogy.
Hellish yows. She believed in God and I started devastating him, I tore that motherfucker
0 shreds, and jaid him out to reat. She just cried, and we'd fight, and mhe'd cxy.

We were washing dighes. one time and she mald " 1 love you, but you dan't say anything
about the Lord anymore.”

I maid, "Fuck the Lord.* I don’t remember, we snded up in some goddamn screp and
she threw & glaas st me. I mid, * You get awfully worksd up over the lard.”

She kept ding-denghng se, trying to get me religious, o I thought, ™ Oh, goddamn it
I'11 go to chureh with you, womas.” She was a Kethodist, Fe clombered into this
fucking chureh. She pointed out thls mper oo the bulletin board, something about
integzation. She pointed to 3%t apd sald, ™ See, he's talking about integmtion, you
see there on the bulletin beard.” 1 satd, ™ Clay, okay, we'll go to church.”

I got into this fucking church, and we get up in the balicolny, and the goddamn
Place is packed. And he starts some bullshit, and about midwmy he says something
Basty abvut Commmian. I get up and yell out,

*Fazcist!”

Marcis pulled oo me, Ehe maid, “Jimmy pleass
First thing he shouts back,

“Coammist!”

"Fascistl”

“Commmint® This tise hiz tone was cold, deadly. God 1t was an awful time. Eerie
period. Anywmy, there was a hell of & commotion. I daon’t know what happened. cussed
out God snd he kept shouting Commutiist... ¥e barely got oat of thers, just got swy.
The police came and we just got away. Nev ainister, fic didnt know who the hell
Be was supposed to be the best hethodiam had to offer. Shit.

Errie time... I hucied for Commumnirts and I couldn’t find thes. Qoly on ocampus, a Tew.

Fipally cne day I was out inithe fars ares, trying to get some apples.] smid, “Anybody
know any Communists out here, aust be some Communisis somswhere—— don't gomebocy like
Bussis around here?” Goddamr some of those people. I gueas they thought I was Fui. Mo,

1l remenber,] started playing the role, thinking thet mome good old Americar bastard
wpuld point me in the right direction that wy; I thought surely there Bust be some
doddamy Commuist somsubers. low io the hell could all of & sudden everybody turn against
Russia after the alliance we'd had?

I rar intc this old man, trying to buy applas. I said, ® Anybody in the world know
& Communisi. around bere?”

He said, * ¥hy do you ask that?” .-

* Becahse 1'd just like to know and talk to somebody that's s Oommunist.”™
He took me in, gave me ap apple, brought his son out. They were colorful pecple.After
& while, afier he'd tested x> and tesisd me, boy he hrought out more pictures... I
pever got’ tomee so mary beautiful pletures in all my life. 4ll about the Soviet Union.
He had ali the goddamn Comauniwt papers---you couldn't bardly buy thes—all the periodical
whisked away, pothing khywsers. He showec me papers about Russia, pictures af Lenin,
That man, he got calied before the state versioc of HUAC, and he moved ammy. So I
didn’t have his friendship anysare.

L1 don‘t remsmber & lot of shit. It's so repressad. It was the goddamndest mess.
“arceline said “you're gonna bave to quit talking about this stuff( meaning Commmism. }¥
Bhe was about tc lose her job. She worked in & hospital, musti've been General Loepital.

1 worked weeksnds. Bul mhe wes such & fucking good nurse. I got a job because of her.

1 worked cne week and they fired =y ass. One week. I was talking Communiss eberywhere

in that hospital, bed to bed, all the phients.Foor Marcie, She was like 10 go crasy.

Bhe u::rufzt Commmigs was the anti-Christ, and hers she was, married to the anti-Christe—
parscodlind,

. Jlmmw wlaams Anntt An dnba ™
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Ons time we ware driving in & car and got inte an argument. About Politics of
course. Ehe » "1 can't take this anymore. You either change your ideclogy or get
out of this car.® We were in the aliddile of nowhere.

-

I maidd, " 5top the car.”™ I got cut and that was it as far as 1 wms concerned.
Walked down the street. Walked and welked. Don't know where the hell I went. Don't
koow what 1 did. I wmlkea and walked, and she finally came tack, drove, and got me.
She was the coe to bend. Because ] was deterzined that I wouldnt bend. That ms it.
ihat was the end of the marTsige. When I stepped out of the car, I sald to ayself
"This marraige is troken. 1's not giving up my ideclogy for you or nobody else.”

B0 1 walked and wilked and walked endlessly. She showed more resistence than she
wsually did. Two or three bours 1 walked. Whatever the hell road 1 ws ¢u, I kept
walking because there wes nowhere else to walk to. R . e 120w e, e
- Bl 'snpther tide I wes 8t hex mother’s house and her aother made SOme resirk
about "piggers” and then sbout Comsunisis.

*"To think sy daughter is married to ome” she mid.

® ¥ell, you won't have 1o look at Mo anymnors,™Isa)d.™1‘'ve had enough of your
damn religious hypocrisy, and I's sick of you. You won't have to have Be eat at
your table. Dan't worry, 1'll never eat at your table as loog as I live, and yw'll
Dever see S¢ again us loog s 1 live.” .

4nd 1 whipped out of that goddamn house. Poor old Charlotte, she was »o shook up.

1 told Marcie, "You're gonna choose between me and that vitch, because 1's npot
gonna be around that bitch.™ "s were home from mchool. Poor dear womsan, 1'd like to
kill that blitch.

Another time , we decided to go to & mmlly for Paul Robeson, and I took her.
ang they rnided the place.

Chariotte: "ny hustand‘s the President of the City Coumcill®

1 maid, * Oh mom, g0 dowr. the ptreet for Chrissakes...” And 1 got out and they
arTested mevernl of us. I don't jmow what the hell went oo in that place, ] can't
remgadber, But they arrested us and thriwed us into the back of this fucking peddy
wagon, and ®y father in liv—Silier— Was supposed 1o pick us Up and he's wmitiing

domn the street. President of the City Council snd he's about to have apoplexy.
Chalotte's running around, chattering * What amn I going to0 do if I get arrested at
4his Commmint meetingl®™ She wms frantic. 1 drug her ass in there. I don't know how

1 did it. Chicago, it was. (o Lake Bireet, 1 think, Gresat big auditorium. They put
+us in & fucking peddy wagon, and we was sitting there, riding along, and the god-

damn peddy wagon door swung opsn. Bverybody looked i sverybody, but nobody moved.

1 thought,” What the hell ia everybody sitting hexe For?™ And 1 got upr and Juspsd out.
And nobody followsd me. I'l]l pever forhet that. B5ix, could've been eight people

and I's the only one who jumped out of that car. It wsn't going that fast. 1 think

1 fell, so msybe it was gelng fasterthan I remsaber. But nobody jumped out but me,

The goddai: door opened to the paddy wagon and they sere just stupified, just stupified.
Just met there. Defeatists. Frightenlog cossentary on humar soclety. This consclousness
that you've got to abide by the law even 1f the law is oo the wrong side.

] wag about to be druz up bafors the Indisns Bommittes on Subwersive activitiea—]
think that was the pame—ay name was suppoesd t0 come up, but about that time NReardthny
&0t sick I think, ar ssybe it was that thing in San Francisco, I gop't recall, but
they cancelled me. 1 had been {cld that 1 was names oo the list that was coming down
because of Farty connections. And thoee pecple still exist—— the rank and file that
pever formally jolned the Party but were active in the Party, went to Party meetings,
Those Commmists no doubt are still but therw, but 1 lost coptact with them, mhit,
years ago. That particular branch I lost coutact with. Another group 1 did not, but
some of this shit I ocan‘t tell. Because I dou't know where those people are; some still
active. Don't went to jeopardise thes.

Somevhiers along the line, Mas became influantial in my life, and 1 don*t know where
in the hell that sas., But wher Mao turned sgainst the Soviets, I had troubles with that.
Even though 1 idolised his for what he did in the Long March— 1 thought that was
tremendous— 1 still had troubis, resl trouble. Beceuse Mao at first was a lover of
the Boviets, he loved Stalin. dna 1 loved Stalin. I never would accept that Stalin
vas a8 btad a8 he was portrayed. I think I began to lear more haevily tothe Maclist
line when the Americar CF lxoke with Stalin. Thats when I broke with the CF, the
Anerican CF. 1 broke all my connections and weni with the Maoists. Because of loyalties
sgain, Deep seated loyalties. I doo't switch in the middle of the strean, Stalin, who
I1'¢ read of and heard reports of that he stood on the outskirts of Moscow.,, who lived
in humble swrroundiings. Purged. Yeah, sure he purged. The goddamned Allies bad infiktrated
bis high command. And all of & sudden along comss Kruschev and Stalin is a soo of a bitch.
1 didn’t dielike Kruschev, I was aluays snchanted with some of his style. I Teasmber
enjoying it so much shen he just took his shoes off and beat thexr on the table at the
U.N. 1 jusi Joved this man aof the peopls, tut I couldn't sccept what the hell they
wopld wart 0 discredit Marshall Stalin for. I know 1 wasn't there, I wasn't there, but
to me it ws too instilled, loyalties instilied, and I Just could not recancile that
break. That loyalty is still deer dowz in me today. Btalin did great things for fhe
Soviet Uplon. It it hadn't besn for Stalin, Russis would never have wan that fucking war.
The Aan of Steel perserversd. Laningrad and Btalingrad. That's where the war turned.

ine hundred or eleven hundred goddams days &t Leningrad, eating dead flesh, And thec
Btalingred, by God, that's where the thing turned. That bttle lives in ay wind,

I met & guy at the University, a former Nazi, who wes there. “e gald he saw that
boarde coming up, and at first he just continued making clgareties, he saw t p—
St actusily aixeed the rising of Do ke ougnt, B Gt the meil 1 golng ca¥t®
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All this mess coming... They were ainging, singing the Internationale. Old pecple.

He thought,™This is lavghable.” But by God, he looked at that shii mere and more, they
kept coming on and an. They ¢rdered to fire. Bodies splintering in the sky. And the
pecple kept on coming. He said, “"Fuck this." Climbed upder a hoddamn tank, as they
sarched ve through that division, Couldn'i stop them. Mowed dosn bodies. And in the
and, after the pitchferks, here cose the young..., lie was & Nazl, He wnes telling me
ithis shit at Indiana University. I wms wondering, © What the hell is this fucker
doing here?™ A Kazi st the University. Scmebody who fought in the Panrer division
against the Soviets was at Indiana University along about 1945-1950, boy, 1'm telling
you, you couldn't get into this goddamn country unless you were a Nagi in tnoee days.
And if you had any Communist connections, your grandma or your cousin, or trade umion,
Your aas wouldn't get into  this country, Ismigration tarriers were borrible, but
Natis kept coming by the umpteen thousands.,.

QiLLpEOCD

1 recsll in the first grade there was this 1ittle gir] that I got the hots for—tmd.
I weni into the athroos and 1 was Jacking off to beat hell in the rest room, and this
Tirst grade tescher of mine came in and said 1 wee a deviate.She said, "™Nobody in the
first grede ahhould be dolng this kind of stuff,” It was the first grade. This teacher
had & red blotch on the side of her Tace and it grew redder and redder, clear up as ghe
wat raging at me., And hell, i 1liked that )little girl Kildred. Jesus Christ, shit, I
wmnted to fuck her tad. I remember I angied around till I got a chance to 1look under
her dress, and she didn’t have any mnties on.And I mmw IT--THE REAL MCCCY. 1 wme going
to the rest rook mevernl times. I don't know what the hell was the Tesult of the
msturtetion. I mean, I was ooly six or seven years cld, bui I was sure trying like
bell.

Trat teacher ws Turious. Sais 1 was a deviate, or something like that because
1 remember I ukad what the damn word meant. Abnormal, Thai's what it ws, She sald,

*Jin Jones, you're aboormal.” Old lady kitchell, 014 Mald. Shit,all the teschers tack
then were old maids, its a wonder anyane ever grew up normal. If you g0t maxTied you
were fired, Poor old Miss Mitchell, She -de the connection with my jl.ckin.g off and
Mildred pecause she said ™ “hat's what you're doing undernesth that desk.”™ And then
she punished Kildred for it and poor hMildred didn't know shit from apple butter about
what s golng ou. 1 338 somethlng 40 her because I sodsd up io e @wincipals office,
Chick koore, and I got a beating from him. Threw ae out of school for three whole days.
First grade. 8hit, the whole goddame school staff had & meeting about my coming bmck in.
1 can't remember what all I'd dome, but i1 meemsd to me I threw a stapler at her...

It took me until the third grmde to get hildred alome. 1 got her in this fucking house,
Everybody was gane, and 1 lsaped on the bed and the bed fell down.,.

Fouri: grade, krs. koore. The ooly “mrs." in the & hool-=the wife of the Jrincilmi.
Now that woman-~ she rewarded me, She wms & wise tescher. She mustve been s very con-
cientious teacher. 1 blotted her out of my samory and well dc I know why. 8he died of
cancer, and they took me to the Iuneral perlor arnd made me lock at her. They held me up
and sade me look at her JAn'the casket.

She maid to me something, well I don't know the words exactly. We were bemting out
SIRBATE. God., it comes back t0 me and I rememeber it like yesterday, Beating out ermsers.
She mid, " If anybody can be 8 leader, you Must be. A teacher feels like luchofuhat
they do iz wmetad, bul you're kind to me. You make =y Amy worthwhils and T foue
won 't dismappoint me." Bhe developad cancer. She lppulad to that senge in pe - I m't
let her down.” I was an atheist even then, and at that funersl parlor they held me upto
look at her, apd when I got down, I was hittex o bitier that I went into the funeral
parjor later, sycle a caskst from the wrehcuse snd & whole tunch of wreaths, and I put
& wreath oo the doar of svery fucker I thought should be dead in the community. I think
I got abowi mix or seven wreaths. 1n those days, a wreath on the door panicked the
whole community. Everybody went ape—shit. ] put one on my own dad's door, But, I st
the casket up in my roox ané I got in it. I mmnted to die I guess. Its funny that 1
blocked :vangoodpenmtoun; out of ay Bescry. 4t war sad, it wes sad.

I didn't have any love given to me; I didn't know what the hell love wms. It was Tough.
Mulm'tthinklmmumhnt.ldmrmtnw. She was the anly teacher who
4idn'{ esbarrass ms. They were always smbmrassing me. No tolerance at a1l for ny
agETessiveaness, 1 had & lnt of good points. I'd help the mnderdog. I°'d help people.

1 was ready to kill by the snd of the third grade. I maar, I was 90 fucking assTessive
and hostile, 1 was ready to kill. Nobody give me any love, any understanding. Ir those
days ¢ parent was suppomsed to go with & child to school funcijons. If your parent didn't
40 you wers an outcast, that's all. I was a fairly good singer. There was some kind of
school performsnce and everybody's fucking mrent wae there twt mine. I'a standing there.
Alcne.ilwats was alons. Evearybody else'd bave their families, their couaing, their aunts ang
uncles— not Jopes.

1o the forth grude I was resady for murder. I walked through
oan't go through ancother ane of these yoars." 1 wax late.
with & passion, I waz late. And I thouant.' Okny bitch, do what

u_lthemtqrthndo.nkzmmmtcfu
like to sit?” And there was wrwth her voice. Qi.l-otal.dae‘rh.dwerukadneﬁnre
I would like to ait: 31 wmas alwys “lou sit here.” And they'd put my ass on the front row
p0 they could mich me. -

Sne wald, ® Where would you like to ait?
-lIHB WAL ) WA A ek AR SATE -
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“Back row, back seat.*

8he meid, "Pins. Only don't let that affect your sducation because you've got a
good mind.”

And that waa the first time anybody had t0ld me I had & good mind. Funny how I
blockad her out of my aind. I resember beating those srasers with her. Bhe cried.
Rer hustand was cruel to per. That's why I hated the princiapl so. And he hated me.
He began to hate me because his wife and I bagen to spend too much time together,

Bhe never had & child and 1 became her child. She said " ] winh ] had & kid like you.™
I'llbegl:d.damedif the next thing I remember is being held up, looking intc her
casket, looking at her body. And Chick, that fucking princiapl, how 1 bated him, he's
standing ir the next réom talking to everyone, chattering awy like nothing's happened,
like nobody's dead. And she's in the front roow— all aloae. All glone. And I want to
cr¥. The pain and the hostility of 1t... because her 1ife war unfulfilled. And that's

dbinim T bmirm mad seime Hassims sAams nasanls masd da Tuid dba darcswmrais
VRETE a4 JmVE) LUV CIYLLEs srvumlist BUWMC PrupLt LDOW bW Sl W AW T Ve

whole chllective crying, the lsader cpn't afforoc 1o wuy.

nrs. Moore. Bhe sure shaped up iu me wat wat congidered t0 be falr play. I don't
thina w.e teacher can put 1nto a perscm & whole sc. of values, Or deep seated feeling
cfloyuy, but she sust've acted as & Xind of catalyst for & senss of loyslty that
uas already there.

dnymy, when 1 got becy w0 school they'd put in this bitch oalled Shafer. I‘ve got
a bltarre thing there, at lsast I think it's biszaree, A1l I can rememeber about that
bitch is her hands., She rubbed ay sarms and said something about an clder woman could
have feelings for o young student. I dom't quite resember all she mald, but 5t was
impliwitly sexaml, thati's for certain. Bhe tried to choke me acmeshere. In a fucking
goddasr: closet. Long corridor...I see conts hanging on both sides, with hooks. She
tried to choke me. I was afraid of that womar. All ] Tememeber is her fucking hands.

I used 1o go around and imitste the may she held her hands. 1 cannot mee that bitch in
my. mind. A1l T cab see is her zoddamn hands. What would that mean? Is there & sexual
thing about being sttracted to handa® Rubbing my arm... she wma making a geal with

s about that exas ... and I becked out of the door to gel avay frow her. bhe repulmes
e, ] recall they geeling of revulsicon.

The next day 1 came back into the cisssroom to take the fucking exas and she gocused
me of cheating. Not anly did she accuse me of {t, she made me wtand wp right in froot of
the whole goddamn clase ant accused me of ii. Bhe shamed me, bermated ma, and shaned me.
Until everybody in the rocs wes peirified. They were quist, very quiet. Soo of a bitch,
what 8 time I had... people would never believe it.

8ixth grade. I got the msanest fucking goddssn temcher that ever lived oo sarth,

A man. First sale teacher I had, and he was a fucking outrage. hie tried to throw me out
of the upstairs assembiy roos window. he shoved Be up, and had me half cut of the
sssanbly roox window. 1 kicked him in the balilis, and Zot run dows 10 the principals
office, and g0t =y ans beat. I got & waling.

I got s0 fad up that 1 ended wp leaving. I yun awmy. ] run off. ] got me a rich
kid’s son, a horse’s ase in tosn, and I smid “ We're gonna be like Huckieverry Finn, we're
gonna go down thelisxissippl. I tmlwed that silYy assed kid into going down the kimmissipri.
Bhit, we'd bave to go five hundred miles to find the Kiskissippi. po we lomded our asses
on a freight car. We went ninety-ane miles and ended up in Logansport, Indians at my aunts
bouse. And my aunt was such a bitch, such a dear, sweet bitch, ¥We anly stopped in there
tc get some sandwiches cause we'd mun out. 1 was golng somewhere snd 1 wasn't going to
fuck around in Logansport.

Bhe called the goddanr polize oo us. Scared the living shit out of us— said they were
going to send us to refore school. 1 begin to really hate the plice then. They were
nagty sons of bitches, dnd they took this kid with me... you kmow, thate a strange
thing about character, who knows what mskes a revolutiooary... I hated those cops, but
what I hated them for the most is they took this kid with me,.. Elliot.., parents were
raising hell. ¥ow here's this family, well-to-do, apnd do you know they turned that kid
over to the jJuvenile authorities? 'nzeir omn kid. And T had that on my conscience. They
shippsd his aw|y, over 1o #ome wocle. He wrote ae Jatar and sald things were (.. So I
neid to ther “ I'm pot going back to Lynn. I won't go back there,™ So I stayed with
ay aunt, Fisally she got sick in the fucking hoapital and she ms tired of me, so she
sent me oo & bus, back to Lynn, My mother never came, and my dad wouldn't come, he
tried t¢ killme you imow, threw me off a bridge, trying to drown me...
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50 I's back in Lynn and 1ts still the aixth grade. I ms considersd the big, btad,
mean motherfucker.I’d damn near killed another rich kid-- almost drowned him, and the
reputation of that followed me for a long time. A kid named Kitchell. 1 held him
down under wter, and damned pear drownec him, he was a mean fucker, & bully. fie'd
hold pecples hesds under wmter. He mede a mistake shen he tried it with me. I got
free and went right for his throat. They had to get me off of him because he was sure
as hell goona be one drowned fucker. I waa going to kill him. Life was miserable
anymy, so I thought why not kill this son of & bitch? A miserable prick.

Its hatd for me 10 Temzaber & lot of this shit—3ts 80 Tepressed, and its so
long ago. If you asked me 10 repeat it tommorrow I couldn't do it. I'm not suwre
even nov I'm being entirely mccurate about some of the details, mome of the grades.
Yery, very difficult.

Seventh grade. Tuffy Hunt drowmns. Principml steps over by the window ir the snow,
and aays “He fell.” Tuffy and I, we'd alwmys go swimming in the cold. I told the
cruzy fucker never t0 g9 alone, because he wasn't ma good B swimmer B& me. And those
kids got him o dare and do it. And then, left him there to drown. A lot of wurder
goes on benemth the mzTace.Its & matter of getting by with it, & matter of who gets
killed and who does the killing.They come telling me, and they were actualiy gleeful.
They wanted to break us up, break the two of us up.

navYEEEH 1 DECPIS L YSTe B 1o TR M AR Y - s BBt VALY ¥R BE= "R B8 o o
taseball temx. I felt morry for Tutfy. he was s terribly, terribvly ugly kid. Fat, tooc.
Fat as could be, but if we'd get into o fight we could whip fiftieen. ¥e were bitter
epenies for the first few years. Until I whipped him== the law of the Jungle you know.
And then Tuffy liked se. I was the leader of the-gang, but he was a close helper. I
was Toally weakened when I lost him. ] saw sarly, that if you want to help peoplse,
you've got to keep together as & group— air't no other way, because the worli is s
godiamn fungle. I suppose that"s why that carried oo over. 8hit, 1 took care of my
gang, Sad parties for them, We were never inviiad io apy of the socialite affisrs—
we were &xwluded from sven gohnosl parties. That's how class structured it was-- you
didn't go to certain things 1f you were poor. 50 we'd have our owr parties, and with
ny clever stealing I put all my gang in style. And they were the motliest crew in the
fucking town. 1 mean they were socme bunch. 1 had the sichkest cpes, the craxiest coes.
I seen I had crazies.

One chap, a Tich kid named Feters, we got into our gang because people considered him
crary, Now Peter ws not, he wmas not loyal though. Ooe time, the whole town ws going
crazy over werewolves. Crary, superstitious town. There was this boyscout meeting
being held, and of course we weren't in anything as square e the boy scouts. So I got
Peter saide ani 1 truined his and I groomed his. “here was a full woon out, just
right, snd Peter had Mls hair combed wild, domn onto his face. All the boyscouts were
there, and he snuck up to the window, and let out the powt poddawful, eerle, wnreal
bowl. The meeting wvas reduced 10 & shaables in seconds.

I was deeply, deeply alienated as & child. I was considered the trash of the meligh-
borhood. 1 fell into the category of white trash because Ky Parent's were ostensibly
light skinned. My mother wms, anyway. They liked my mother less thoufh than xy dad
because she was so unconvantiosnl, and not religious. 5o the fact that I sought approval
40 damr. much and couldrn’t get it saabled me to work through that need at & very young
age. Finally decided to be true to my own consclance beciuse the frustrations of trying
to be accepted, meet the norms, and still not being sccepted, golng to all the churches
and still not being accepted, relicved me st an early age of & lot of the [ressures that
& 1ot of people still have to deal with.

R
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MCCARTHY EHA/BECIMNING OF CHURCH CAREER

I wan vary pro-Jewish because the strongest on the side of Communiss were Jows.
And then, when the Jews turned against the Sovietsa, 1 didn't know what the fuck was
E0ing . Rosenbergs... ] was in a coma when the Rosenbergs were belng executed, 1
ms ready to die, Infectious hepititus. My mind was mo dim... It ws in the summer.
Farcie s standing behind & scresned partition. Jesus Christ, 1 kept .

"Ibey can’t kill these people, thay can't kill these pecple.” I'd marched til there
were holes in my mboes trying to gei petitions. The fucking Fope, we even got the Fope.
And their children came up and kissed them through the screen. Oh Ged, T just died
& thousand deaths, I wish I could've died then.Kell you cmn anly have 80 many rev-
clutiopary deathe~ you care for people, you die, you dle. Bo hell, death isn't any
Provies for me anysors. I was in this goddasn missradle coma. 1°d drift in- ang out,
and look up st the clock as it tickad ammy.

“Say, Marcis, are the Hosenbergs dead yet, are they dead yet?*
at ™Mo dear, not yet..."
ml'd&ah;ck...lmum. Ard then, I came out of the last com, and they'a
bean executed. I really don't understand why I lived. I really don't hooestly josow
I Hved. I thought, "It's futike."sn irhumsne yystes thet kills pecple bused on & b:{-h
31’ SCrap paper, Just becsuse they had Communi ffiliations. Bo moye had given atomic
secrets” than I had. I that systes. when ] got out of that coma. ] wisped
1 bad died. I wept til those goddamn mheets were just mosksd. 50 soseplace alang the
line 1 quit crying. Don't cry anymcre.

L
E
:
5
(e
ll

L
2



. O-\-6- ¢

I's wandericg down the street, stopped st & used oar lot, and I mest & man.
And 1 f£in¢ out he's a Methodist Superintendemt. And 1 think, “Oh shit, a religiocus
nut.® S0 I startsd Enocking the c¢hurch, just raiaing hell. He said, “Why dom't you
come to my office?” Lare 1 am, reving sgainst the church, knocking the church, rig~
iculing God, all this ahit and he saps * why don't you come to my office?™ I thought,
"You fucker. I1’a not coming t¢ your goddamn office.” But I did, For some instincilve reason
I did. He mid, " I want you to take a church.” I sid, * You giving pe & church?
1 doo't believe in anything. I's & revclutionaly.” He said, “why don!t you take a church,
why doc't you take & church?™ And he appointed me, 8 fucking Communist to & goddamn church.
And 1 didn't even meet him through the Farty. 1 met his in & fucking ussd car lot.
Ihis we 1957 1 think. Mc Carthylsz... ¥hatever, I took this goddamn church as a
Communist who believed in nothhng=— that's how religious ] was ( and syill an).
And 1 preached to Marceleine. I said, "What sa I going to 40 with this goddasn thing?
This guy, he's obviously, obviously s Commmist or st least ayapsthetic and he wmnts
me t0 4o something with this goddamn church.” Thats how the chwrch wandersd onto it.
The church fell in xy 1sp. He's the ont who startsd it, I hope he's dead, Martin was his
nane. He did dis, yeanh, he dlied.
I took thid church. I resesber 1 thoagnt ] was golng to die & thousand dasths
Mhen ) got up ic that pulpit. Preaching the firsi day, 1 bad the pecpie in turmols.
Intagration. The first day I had this little old Jady, slways ope little old lady
who runs things. I oan't remesber her name, tut mhe was all upset with me and she complained
to Martin and Martin wpheld me, O 1t went, I finally trouwght Blacks intc the churceh,
Martin backed me up, and then, suddenly, he sas removed. His successor ws C.T. Alexander.
fe wmr wuch the-—uh-—— ppposite of Rartin. like nighi from day. iAnd I'm going on with this
bullshit, bringing all these people ip=—= and losing all the old timers, except that ape
old bitch who's still hanging in there.
Ang finally 1 thought, "I've got to get rid of these old prude headed bastards.”
Bo I toyed with Fentacostalista. They seemed to be more accepting of Biacks you know;
at Jeast I could get thes to accepi initegratia. Integratiocn was & big, big issue wifs
me, Ao inclusive congregation, that was the first big issue. What a hell of a tattle ithat
was. 1 thought, * I'll pever make n revolution— I can't sven get these fuckers to git
together, much less get 1o any Compurist philososhy. There's no wmy I'a going to
politicige these fuckers if 1 oan't get them to sit togetner,”™ And it was & hell aof &
Jot. 17d get these Fentacostals in and the Kethodists would leave. C.7. Alexander aaid,
™hat i _ghing on over there?” Called me and asked me. I thought, "Pisa on you man. Ypu
dide't put me into this church, and I'm not sbout to let me put you out.” So I conspired
with the whole goddamn church te withdraw from the Methodist denomination, which had never
been done in the Methodist church, at issst aot in Indlana.l got & whole bunch of people
together 4o wvote the goddamn church out of the conference snd named it mpother church.
They gave me¢ two weeks notice that this church is owned by the denominsgtion and I°'¢ have
t0 vacate. And we gave thes a petition back saying “Cet Lost.”™ And it was w ptand-off,
Firet time in history, Methodist denomination. They had to sigr the goddamr parsonage
over o me becaume I'd bousht it out fros under thas, Churceh s nothing, s hapdful of
eld bigots until I bWrought in some Blacks.
And that's how the goddamm religious career got rolling. 1 was presching integratiom,
sgainst wvar, nixing in & little Pentacostal crap— they;re all sh
and raising hell—— and I's preaching intsgretion, against war
Comrunist philosophy. Get a bunch of Fentacostals in thare and they were going crasy-—-
because they ated integration, Commmisa, and pesople who preachesd against war.
It was a circus. 5o the Kethodists mav it as & weak aoment and they
ans out, 50 1 pulled out the song books, and damn near had the benches out, when the
police came nnd #ald * You can't tawe this,”™ 1 said, ™1
They wouldn't let me take the organ. Nearly got amy with it, though.
o 1 moved up to & Beventh Day Baptist Church. And there I
and I thought, "If these sons of bitches can do 1t, then I can do it too.” And I tried
ay firet feat of healing. ] don't remexber how. Didn't work out too well. But I kept
mtching those healers. 1 thought, "These assholes., Doing notning with this thing." 1
couldn®t see nobody healed. But crewds coming... 5o I thought that there must be a
wmy that you could do this for good, 4hat you omn get the cTowd, get some Boney, &nd
do some good with 1t.
Ended up in Columbus, Indisna, trying my best to get started along those lines and
I wasnit getting very far. I recall a little 0ld lady, she was in white, one service,
all in white— that's the way those Holiness pecple dresasd in those days. She called me
up to her and maid, "I perceive that you are a prophet that shall go around the world,
You &hail be heard around the world. And tonight ye shall begin your ministry.”
1 thonght, "Okay honey, you smid it.™ I didn't know shat the fuck she was talking
about. I got up there thet night in the pulpit, because, you know, she said that night
1mmmumm.zm@umtumpn,-nu-u-am.mm't open.
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1 closed ay eyes. ind all this shit flys through my mind and T call it out.
And 1 had people coming up—screaming and holloring, The first time { Lauwrs RcQueen
wap there, she could tell you about it) I had people screaming and holloring, and the
pecond  night-— you couldn®t get in the goddamm building. And I'd just call people out
and they'd get healed of everything., Much like I do pow, with help, but then 1 didn't
have po help. Eeally, Nothing. Just close my eysa... and call. Such s drain. It got
B0 boavy. Jesus Christ. I thoughi, "I oan*t #tand this.® Wasn*t too iong pefore I
started taking litile notes, For ysars and years it was me, and ay gift, and whatever I
could take down. Until Fatty ceme along, That ms , hell, twelve, thirteen years ago.
From 195% til Patiy came, sbout eleven ysars, eleven solld years of that shit, I
carried it. And I ca rried it alright. Facked the biggest suditoriume in indians and
Ohic. I should've left it that way. But I'dve beer dead. Fecple pass growths and then
by aleight of hand I started doing it«— and that would trigger others to get healed.
It whs & kind of catalyst process, to bulld faith. Bput I never had anybody help me.
Not ever Parcie. “arcie bever knew there was tne thing but pure reality. “arried it
entiraly by myself. Should’ve kept it that way. Didn't trust pecple. It wmman’t days
before people were maying ® You're Jesus Christ." Hell, it didn't maks me believe in
& loving Deity anymore than before, I can tell you that. Pui pevple gave me more bullshit,
"You're Jesus Christ.” Hell, it didn’t make any difference to me, one sy or the other.
3 d¢idn’4 know bow to explain how people got healed of every goddamn thing under the sum,
that's for sure. Or apparently got healed. How long 1t lasted 1 don't know. But shit,
there are people with me right pow who got healed fifteen, twenty ysars agc, and are
stil]l O.X. Bo 1 emn't explain 1t. I can heal, I know that. But how it works, mhit, I
don’t know. But some of it wouldn't be by any psychic thing— I'd say "Let out of that
wheelchalir.,” 1 wax a dogzed person; 1'd fight every goddamn case. 1 was different
from every other healer because 1 wouldn't ignore the hardehip cases, I1'¢ fill the goddamr
places. Flaces would be packed. Be 80 stacked you couldn't get in, climbing in the win=
dows. You've never seen crowds like it ir our day. Be & thoumand outside. Crawling through
the window, One woman climbed through a window t0 be hesled. Crippled woman.

But you sew, nODOdy gives » Enit as long as you don't become political. dnd I eould
get the crowds together, Wt I couldn’t get them politicired. Could not get the
cadre of people together politieally. Kever misused the mamey. Momey alwmys went for
good causes. Went for some fucking strange cuuses too, Very early. 1 had treasurers
channel money to places where they didn't mow what thethell they were doing. 1 personally
alwys kept out of thet money business. Never had a thing to do with the money. Sent
money through & chirch foundaiion and then on to help some of th
palitical reasons. I got money to them, And wminowns== 1 »e
were being persecuted. 1'd go through intricate kind of ways to do it. Always had an
ability to get money together. I reasaber ope time I was buying a
Teally.

1 said, " How about ¥ I cmn pay this off in a year, you dan't charge any interest?”

They laughed. "Don’t think you could do that sir.” But they sgreesd to it, as a Kin
of joke. Thought I was c¢raty, I guess. So I paid the goddamn thing off— one day before
the year was up. They waren ' aggravated. On the contrary, I think they kind of adxired
it. 1 paid the thing off, and 1 beat the goddamn romds to 4o it. Held meetinge in every
goddas: place wnder the sun. Ijd hold meetings in ebery goddamn place under the sun., I'd
hold & meeting in (hio, travel to some other town, and hold bne at night. Three meetings
4 day in some places. Three meetings on Bunday and best the roade Thursday, Friday, and
Spturday. Get home; I'd drag mss home about nine o clock Sunday. Sometimes it got so bad
on e physically that 1'é strsp my wrist 1o the side of a oar door, and Jack Basa would
drive the car at & running pace, o0 I'd be forced to run along mide jhe car— to get my
systes back ir talance, get me going agein., I's smared I'm alive today.

Lo [ =4

poople ob trial for
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then I lost wy child, when I lost Staphanie— and no child could be more dear to
Ba thar she was... its very painful to recall this. I think she felt there was something
vary, very lisitad in her sxistance bscause ths day she died, har iast day, she kept saying,
"0k~ Bok peeds & Mosay and Daddy" and she'd never once Bentioned her sisiter OkeBok
before. 1 dido’t kmow anything about Ok-bBok. I didn't know a fucking thing about
Ok=-irok.

“Ok-poi nseds & Nommy and Daddy”. Fersisted snd persisted...Stephacie, Oop~Sou-ns.
Ne weare very close, vary close. She'd lost evaryone else in her young Life. Wnen 1'd
g° ou & speaking tour J'd have to onll her every night, let her know I'c be beck, telk
o her. Anyuay, that night we'a taken a group of children to the soc, and that night we
ware Stayiug fur & sesting shere I wpuld speak. i nightmare, a nightsare.,.
.. EeTie sarvice. The whole goddamc service was oeris. Mabel nsked for & song. how
abel never asked for a Bong, never. Ghe ms & fine woman——sy right ara ir those days.
Sineteen fifty- pins . Bo that might she maid, " I want to sing ‘On up the Road®,
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we sang the soug:

up the road

in the distance

w & light, shining in the night...
1 knew,.."

the last lines were something about God or Jesus, but utterly final--like the
everything, Okay. Then a weird thing happened. ] stopped at the end of the song,
I called out Mabel’s pame. Mabel, instasd of dolng what she always does, fust rushes
rushes cut the doar. She didn't respond o my call, she seemed alnost moody, wnich
like her, ind as she was leaving,] shouted out the name of a town, a name that meart
ing to me, It tacmed out to be the name of the town where the death came,..

The =08t tragic automoblile accldent. Horrible, trwgic scoident, Qf all the sad part,
& youn marn, a social activist seminsrian, he's pirked up just a fev hundred yards down
the road by this drunk and this drunk goes on the wrong side of the ro ad and hits
fiabel head on and mcatters my peopls all over the highwmy, Killed habel instantly. Killed
Inliss who wes another strong Black woman, and it was #0 hard to get Blacke to joln back
then. And then there ws s young woman whe taught Bunday sch®ol and she gets wiped out.
Her child is alive snd I tried to take care ©f her Tut the famlly omme sand tock her
away-- primarily because of prejudice.

And my Con=Sou=-na...

I had exchanged pulpite with a aan ramed ¥ilson. he went on and T stayed st the
church that night. The micister's wife came to me in the aiddle of the night and maid
she'd got & call that ™ people were dead and dying™ out there in the aiddle of the highway.
That was it. Yo further explanation. Just “people ware desd and dying.” In the middle
of nowhere, almost a hundred ailes amay. Get in a car.

Another strange thing. You know, Farcle is not given to paychic experiences, not
st all. Bot thal night sne asakened sharply, in the ajddle aof the night, and the rsin
wee falling dows hard, and Btephanie was beutlng st the sumser porch window,.. She
swore it was Stephanie, but of courwe it couldn'r havenbeen, We figured out later that
it paprened at the pame time the accident was taking place, almost a hundred mlles away.

Marcie is not given to that shlt. "arcie would alwaye play it straight-- ghe was never
Liven to embellighment, even for th: sake of dynaxisx. Abything “wrcie would tall you-
it happened that way. Especiklly in thise days—straight as a die,

S0 I get this message and ] #TF 10 Tind a cur. #0 one would give me & oar, but finally
I get thie fucking beat vy old car. The gears wouldn't work right, wouldn't hardly anifi,
I's rolling down the rmod,a wooded arss, cne of the lesser travelled parts of the highway.
1 wouldn't have taken that road, but that wis the road they had taken, and I figure I've
got to go that wy, because 1 don't kmow if they’re laying in a ditch or what the hell
has happened. And up comes by the side of my car & aan, driving a car, and here he is...
wmit. ] beg your pardon, I wan't driving the car, the ninister's wife mas driving the

car, and I sms trying 1o 2 ¥y 5 k. h god, 1ife 4s Ylke & torture Chesber...l ook over

AL, By
in the car n to us with his dick out the window. And they pull
tshnpmoﬂtbem.hyhughmmuhuptoo,mdl think
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of us, and 1 sag—w=po license plate. 1 thought
"He're up shit creek. These fuckers mean business.*

Sone way 1 shifted myself under this minister's wife, and shifted her over, and I
took over this goddemn car. And for forty fucking miles those misersble fuckers tried
to drive me off the remd, Into s ditch, side by side, running ninety miles an hour, trylng
to get to pecple who were lying out dead on & road. 1 thought, this is the meanest
cratiest goddawn universe... ind then & wolce kind of passed through ay mind, sounded
® bit like habel's woice: ™There are thinge woree than dying, aren't there, Jim.”

1 remesber that, most distinctly, and I remember reflecting, in the middle of this hell:
“¥ell, yeah. Thats right. There are things a lot worse than just dying..."

These pricks beat the side of the car, kept it up and kept it up. Pinally though, they
get in fxont of me snd I think I can't fight anywore. They werwdtermined to rups those
women, and protmbly kill them and me as well.]Jt was obwioua. ¥o licenss plate, They finmally
get in front of me, pull their car sideways, and block the romd in fromt. And I don't
know what thefuck I am to do. We're in the aiddle of nowhere, 30 1 yanked that car in
Teverse and I wmuntive gone 8 fucking mile, thes chasing right after me.,. I get to this
little gravel road, I don't knovw shere it goes, shit, anywhere, anyhere to get off
that road... I turned up that road and just at athat time the car was coming Lowrads mme.
There must've been four or five of them, weird pricks, have their dicks hanging out with
hard-ons, out the cur window.

- Well, I run up that fucking goddsmn romd, and I think I's never gonna get out of
this, and finally up on =y right I see a little house. Ko lights, but I see a car. So
I run up behind that oar, and a couple of kids arethere, petting. I figure 1 got to
get in there, I got to do something or those weirdos ate gonsth find us sure s hell in
the middle of noshers. I told the girls to run, and hide pearby, mnd keep silent.
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These two kids. I'» t.ellj.ng then as Tast as I ¢an blurt it out that these guys behind
us are killers, that they're gonna vape these iwo women mnd I got to get 4o thal houss

*hother'll be upset if we let you in."

I maid, ¥ 1 don't give & goddamn if you're mother will be upset. Idm'tgivenfuck

1 ax golng into that house. I ring the doorbell and the bitch wouldn't let me in., And sc
I stood thers, close to the shadows, and 1 figure, 1f I stay here long enough-— because
the bitch had 1it up the house— and 1€ 1 siocod 15.kemtet01heﬂw:r. in the shadow,
tpose pricks just maybe could not see me froz the drivewy, and they'd think I was in
the house. They pulled avay, backed up for a while down the road=-— hesitating. I

stayed there interminably. They tacked ul more and more, untii. I maw thes finally
make & tirm down the rand to the main highway, and drift slowly down that romd...

I get in the car with the women and ¥ run that car through the goddamndest series of
back romds, dirt roads, that you ever saw,and finxlly got back to that highway.
Fortunstely, I'd eluded them. I lived in frentied fear that shen I hit the highway those
Jricks would be there again-- but they weren't.

We drive oo and I finally get to the scene of the accldent and everyome's gone- by
now. Just glass and blood, glazs snd blood all over the nzd 1 go oo to ithe hospital,
and this cold, cold bitcj of a murme maye, "Your daughter's dead, A1l deaj except ane child.
But its not your child. The Oriental chlld is dead." ] raced my ast home, trying to
&et there before the hospital called to let my wife and mother know. ut the fucking
hospital had calied before I got there...

Ther all the fuckers dropping in, dropping in-- that's s lifetime sLoTy, & 1lifetine

story-- so I get there and &kl the people are coming, saying thy're gonna do this
and that for us, none of which they ever did af course. Ané then the question comes up
whe's golng to take care of the remains? 1 started thinking, and then ] remesbered that
there. was a policy that you couldn't bury slack pecple in white cemstaries. 5c 1 got
to checking it out, and sure as fuck, Do cemetary would take Jewt or Blacks. That wms
in 1959. Bo I sald,"well I'm not going with the rest of you félk. You can have your
damn funersl but I'm not going. 1'm going someplace where people of any ruce can be
turied.” S0 I went to s Black morticlan and 1°11 be goddssned if he wouldrs 't handle
it. Didn't take whites or Asians. ] went frox place to place. Ko one would do it.

I mnid, "’oaus “hrist, wat as 1 going to do?”

-"Well you're soing to axry her that's what you're going to do" one of theasaid,
ﬂnt'l the lav.*

I sid, "well, that may be, but I's pot going to by ber until I can bury her by my
incipien.”

ky wife was sure hxving & hard time with all of this. 1 felt all this pull, you
know, of what I was putting my wife through.But she tmcked me, mhe finally saw the crasaness,
the crudeness of it ali. Cemetary safter motherfucking cemetary, Never could find &
fuckiog cemetmzy. A1l we found finally wee a low part of & hill, hal? underwater. I
ws 80 fucking msad, I wasn't going to tary the child. I was furious. 1 was ready to
do the whole fucking systes in. I finaily said, *0.K. I's Black.” They mmid, "You
can't do that.” I maid, "Well goddamnit you're gonna bury my child there, snd you're gonna
give me all the plotas there, because if thats where you put minority people and Jews, if
that's where you put thes then that's shere we all go—— down at the bottom of the hill.
And luck would have it that the day of the Wrial its reining cate and doge and the
fucking wemetary is half-flooded. We lowered her into s goddamn hible that looked like &
pocl, Couldn't even get her in properly. Oh shit, it was cruel, cruel. That fucking
vault, the water half-filling it. I pulled karcelines bwck because i knew there wms oo
ume 10 stand there and wmtch that. There wns nc wy they were ever gonna get the water
out of that mess. The whole graveyard was standing in wmter.

And ther at the fureral, all these vultures case rmning through. Peopls who hated
e but who had just come 1o see my min. I expect they didn't come to the funeral
parior because it was Iir a Black neighborhood. I bad to find the poorest daan Black
morticlan, because he was the only one who would take the child. Some ofthex, in all
fairness, were not prejudiced, but they were fearful of crossing that color line, That
ungean line... they were afraid, afzaid they'd lose thelr ousiness.

But these white religious folk come ripping in there and ay wife is half-dead. She's
laying out there herself mctiulh And this minister's wife says to her,” how don't
woTTY, You can slways have mnother.® I guegs mhe wap trying to be comforting, tut Jesus,
§t was 8o cold. Likcmcmldcxm your child like an item oo & shelf. Lowe one,
buy another... I thought, "I's ge:mz k311 her.™ But ther I remeabered Con-sou-na had maid,
"Ok-bok nesds & Mommy and Deddy.* S0 I went to the goddamn old fmy phooe in the hall
lndIge}laholdn!uxendio-mnwﬁcu.m&the:ginnullkm.nfmitnml
Taise hell.

"™Wnat's this Oh-Bok? How do you spell Dt-—bok?"

® I don't imow how 6 spell ii, goddawr  3t1.°

But 1 seni the thing to the orphansge in Korea and finally I gotu:ln , and that's
how ] got Susanne. The last thing my child ssid to me, the last thing, “Uk-bok needa
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A Nomay and Deddy.® I'd spent the day shopping with her, and she kept telling me,
over and over, all the goddamn day... She had never mentionsd it befors, and of course
ahe pever could after that n.ght.

That's just one, ome little episcde in my 1life. And goddamn it, these Dastards that
Are after us now, they musti know it. They muat know I's decent. Shit that's prowmbly
why they want to kill me. They see 1've got all these people here, mretty well arganired,
and I won't bend.¥We all won't.

4 1ot of little incidents. The time 1 wmlk into the hawthorne Testavhrant with ay
faxily, my interrmcisl family, and we wit and weit, and 1 think-="ah-ha.® 5S¢ I raised
bell, and we get & table and they malt our fucking food untll we can’t hardly eat it.

I called a demcostrstion and said, on T.V. , that I wea going to fast wuntil that place
startsd serving food to everyons., Three days later, the place mmp Integrated.

Black policeman once harassed me when 1 was on the Human Rights Comeission. I was at
the intersection of 38th and Meridisn, Twuing oo a4 yellow light. And this cop pulls
up, sirens screacing. He mid, "Oh, its Rev. Joves.™ Xasty, abugive tone. Started really
being pasty. I said, * You are outrmgecus. ¥Why ds you lei yourself play & role for the
systen like this?” he cells in e0 many goddasr,.. 1 maan 1 never seen s many.goddasn
pollice cars come screeching in from everywhere in all =y life. He maid I was threatening
an officer.” 1 never sald shit to his but that one statement. I finally maised so much
hell that they dropped the: thing and 1 4idn®t have to sven Py the ticket.

DRCEXEER & 1977. THE FOLLOWIK: COMMENTS WERE WALE TC THE ENTIRE JOKESTOMK CORMDITY
A FEM HOURS APTER THE DEATn OF LYNETTA JOBES, JIN'S MOTHER.

I don't expect you t¢ feel towmrds my mother as I did, It's not sentimental because-
of her being my mother, because the fact that mhe's demd doean't change that I resent
ber for bringlng me into the world. but back in 1952 or so, when 1 was working with the
Comaunist Party in Indiana, she mtood up sc bravely, without any political awareness,
when the FEI had three guys standing, hovering over her, firing questions at her for
hours about me and my activities. One guestion wfter mnother. And emch apd every time
she'd answer: “I tefuse to answer on the grounds that it might tend to incrizinate me,®

But I know Lynetta. She wasr't thinking about the grounds that might tend to incris—
inste her— she was mcarad shitless that it alght incrizinate her son, 1 guess some
wry she knew from the time I s very young that I wmas, wmell, —different. Outspoken.
Honest, if it dosan't sound too egotistical to sey it. Even though 1 overthrev God,
overthres yeligion, denounced the pible, cursed the old traditions, ma)d the United
States waz rotten, fazcizt. God how much of & weight that sas oo A woman who always
believed ir standing and saluting the flag. She knew that Jim Janes was decent. She followed
me in spite of the fact that it cost her ber job, her prestige. Ghe followed me in
Bpite of the fact that 1 went against everything she sver knew. But at ‘hat momert, she
knev Jin Jones wme right and the Fol was wroog. Even though she didn't understand s word
of what Jix Jones was sAying or shat he was standing for.

It was hours they kept at her, bemating her in front of all her fellow ssployess..

"You're & Comaie. Trat's Commie talk.” In those days po one dared use the Fifth
Ametidnant, because to use the Fifth Amendaeni was taniamount to an admisiion that you
were a Commumist. Tou couldn't use the Copstitution. If you talked about the Bill of
Rights, 1f you talked about civil rights you were a Communist. And that dark exn is
Te-appearipg again. Over and over sgain our frisnds, our supporters say that its all
happening over again. It was certainly asid by Lt. Governcr Dymally. lie's another
stemngg guy. He doean’t know Karziax, he doemn ‘i know Leniniss— but he sure as hell
knows something about loyalty. He's facing an election year, too. He certainly is a
brave agn, & man of charscter. In his way, maybe he knowe he's golng to be run out of
the country someday. Whailever, he's showmn the mos suppart, the deepsst kind of loyalty
of ail. Bven some of the Coammists—ihey're pareful, But not Merv Dymlly. He's a good
man.
Aoywmy, al] through that intmrogation, Lynetta just kept it up. Wouldn't answer
anything. 1 remebber Mdhan 1 wav  her that night she was 80 hoarse, she couldn't ever
talk. She shisperad. Bhe said, “Bon, what have you besn up to? They've been after me
all day long..."™

I 1014 her, and she cried. I maid, " I's going to Dave to lsave, because no doubt
they'll be looking for me.” .

Bo I went amy in hiding for meveral weeks. Put what a brave woman she was. Abd as
I looksd down on hars soment ago, 1 don't know that it helps, perhaps it does.
Esphysesa... Proa the tise 1 was four or five yoars of age I can remember telling her
" Mom, why dor't you quit smoking, it's goong kill you.™ But ii got & hold of her acnd
she sncked for well over half & caotury. Its a horrible disease. Never can get enough
sir, Two nizghts ago, she had a strokes. Tongue hanging out, saliva flowing down her face.
8he couldn't move har gye. Bhe couldn't talk, move her mide. I remember one thing she
sald to mat "Oh, God, I hope I nevar Live to be paralysed.”™ And I mustered shntaver
will T had and she did come out of that stroke., Don't ask me how, ] don’t have a for—
somathing we don’t yet understand. I dom’t know.
hexr when she was yourger. She would champlon every podr
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person, Black or white, Cone time they aven mccumed her of having ap affalr with & filihy
©01ld vagabond. Ballina Hutcherson. lie was 80 ugly and dirty, nobody on serth smnted Lim,
They wanted hie run out of town. Mom would go by and give him tathg— he was 0ld enough
tc be her grandfather—~ tring him things, take hiz for walks. Ehe purposely stayed all
night with his once, Just sc they'd tell that yumor about her. One time she put &
flower in hia lapel, and mlked arm in arm with his down the street... She did have
that kind of spunk. histinct contradietion in her personality-~not like the ususal

flag wmver, bhecause she could sure bresk with tradition, with precedent. And she went
through many years of it. .

1t wms ny owp church that finally broke her tmck. Outgoing she ws—~she gave of
herself. But then 1 went away to South Aserica to humt for a place, because yeATs ago
1 knew there was no place for Tnind World people, for an interracial organisation,
in the United States. Bo I went to irmeil, looking for & place. dnd while I wms there
1 left & tursing home that I had built and established with ay own money-—not a dime
of church funds. 1 left it 1o be mnaged by my in-laws. My father-in~law was s staunch
Republican, Anyway they had this rest home of mine and they ran it almost into financial
destruction, Frox the place where 1 was in braeil I finally got the neasage home by
telephone and mald, “.ook. For God's sake let ay mother get lnvolved. She knows how to
ke a dollar go.” I lsammed that from her 100, you can De sure I  learned how to make
a dollsr stretch and its a damn good thing, or we wouldrn®t all be smting right now.¥e
have a security that scet in the world don't have--we know for & certainty that we all
will eat for the next six months, and thats reassuring if you've ever been hungry. hox
taught se, she drilled ae on stretching a dollar and I hated i1, But 5t was a valuable
lesson to laarn. Rver if you hate ke, e day, msybe after 1's gone, you'll know how
important it is to save to build something worthwhile.

Bo my mother took m hold of the place and made mome money, sent sowme extra Eoney
dosn to Brazil, where I was looking around for some land where I could build something
for ay family, and maybe take & fow others as well. The beams came over. It looked like
sven ir those days I might get it started, might get it off. Anyway, in the midst of
all this, my sother-in~law becase jeaitme. And she took it out, perhaps unconsciously
by reporting my mother for some technical infractions—— and pat the business wnder
investigation, and tied up all the funds. Dam: near starved us out ip kragil. Amin
xy mother fought on, held on, fought the hsalth depertaent, stood her ground, and fimally
won snd kepl the place. I got Dack in time to save the bollding. Out of that business
cane some of the momey that started the work in (alifornia.

I dm't gloridy bex, Wit #1ill I Gan seée that sany in the chiurch werr responsibie
for her because the whole church in Indiana had lined up against her in her fight for
her son, and his kide, and the few whom he was trylng to keep together. And they
Qiecredited her, and put her through hell, and it was hard for her ever to have faith
in people afier that. She maw pecple leave me, laave the church, take over the church
in Indisna while I wes asay. I got it bmck, but with bardly anybody in it. Just a few.

There were littls, selfienr moments that I would've liked to see differmctly, but
othars can tell you how, ever at the end, a basic goodness burned in her moul. Bhe
tioned moTe money over to this cause than any other human being. All she had. Every
dime. her eccentricities I can face, and her strengths I car see. 1 dor'4 Delieve
in glarifying the dead.But it took a lot out of me. Becaume you see, mhe made it
possible for you to be here. The ones of you who were hrought out of Jail, or who had
friends, relatives who were brought out of jail-—~ she mmde it possible. Because if
she hadr't faced up to the FBI that day, when she ¢idn't know Commmias from apple
cider... They hasaied her, and they jeerad at her, and they did it in front of the
whole shop, just to humiliate her.

“You're a Commimist!®™

* 1 refuse to answer...”

&he lost her position as: a shop stewerdess. Wnen they go through with exbaramsing
her in froct of all those people, that was the end of her union career. hever again
would anyone trust Lynetta Jones because the Fol had come and asked her questions.
And ir America, if the FEI asks you questions, or if you are sxrestsd, or if the news-
Peper attacks you, you are guilty. That's why I's glad to be out of there, because the
same 0ld scenaric is starting over again, same ¢ld pminful scenario. how long she will
be laying there, I don't know, but as I smid, if you want to, some that knew her, some
that liked her, you can go by and take & last look--—becayse she looke very well.

She was all I had... it wmsn't much at times, because she was n0 drained herself,
working two jobs, but she was all I had. hy dad s drunk most of the time. he was a

41#ficult permon, bet he had been bedly geoesd in ¥orld Ear I and it affsctsd hiz

gToatly. He ups one of the worst gas viciims you ever want to see, and 1t affecied
bin emotionally as well as physically.

1o those growing up Yesrs ny som was the difference betweer hread and butter
snd going hungry. 1 think we all cry because we wizh we could've given mare love
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tc the people that we know we love. She loved the jungle mo much, never did get btut
one time close to it. Bhe loved the jungle; ahe grew up in s kind of jungle.

But in theend there wat too much agony. It was justi toc much aghny, she couldn't

et her tresth...ob God, you don't know how good somebody is wniil they're gone,
) For that I exry for the human race. I really cry for the human race, We don't
know how good people are til they're gone...

What the hell would you have without Communima? I mean, what the fuck would you
have? life is full of pein, and there's anly one chance of getting rid of some of the
pein; that's through Communist philoscphy. I don't mow where else the hell you'd go.
Bure a3 hell wouldn't want to amd up like some of those seliish pigs I see in the
systen.

Mom was & leader...you guys would've li.ked her. People would try to fuck her over

and sh2'd beck them off. The horror, the g death. But if out of 1t I can do
somsthine, I sat and talted with Etejhan u-.'m afiay her dsath with more dsoth

SURSLILINE. « BB a0 wahal miad R -.-.u,_ =L aT =Ore Qepln

than ever before. Andeoug\t. "Ihinisnrysood tc know how he thinks. At least
this has come out of the awful agony I feel of miasing that sharp aind..."™ So if
you'd like, go by and take a last look. because she ]ooks very well, wery well indeed.

HZIL (From some tapes made in Oct. 1977)

Ivent down to Braeil t0 look for refuge for some of my people, or a place for
people to find refuge to do abeclutely revolutionary things. mrazil... One day, we
got to go to the beach, and we sme. I had my kids, and we were playing in the water.
It was the closest thing t¢ a mosent of freedox, sheer freddom from worry. Until I
looksd up, over Copacatmns, ant saw the hills., Tier after tier of shanties put together
with the Darest of wood, cartons, cardboard, that would always wash out at any mejor
rain. I remember at one time there were soveral thousand sashed fown that way, many, many
to their deaths.

Brazil was o painful chapter in my life. I remsmber catching Jimey when he nearly
fell out of the seventh flotr window, What goes through your head at times llke that.
I remember thinking, "™Well, being Black in America has been so rough on him, snd to
have to go tack there, maybe I'm doing hin a disservice...” But grabbed I 4id, of course,
Just before he would've fallen seven stories to his death.

Interracial mixture of my family and sy church I felt ws just fundamentally st
odds with the capitalist development in the U.S. The thermonuclear reality was there,toc.
1 thought, *how couid pecple be mad encugh to make such wespons and then gane anough
not to use them?" I didn't give a damn about living, but 1 thought chlldren should
be given a chance. The hexispheres were scmewhat separate in wind currents and in
that period there was some chance of more likelihood of survival. And at that time
braril seemed to be moving o a course of social democracy. Gulilar was progressive, but
I kmex something was up in Hraell, shortly after I was there, because Quadros, who was

a nncm'!-‘l hero of aorts. nnirn-d withonut notice and laft the sowmtry, It wms a igmi'
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repressios introduced to Brexrilians because he did not think there would be any
resistence.

While I was in Brueil I did a ot o husanitarian work, Orphansge, two arphanages.
1 was feeding, getting the To0d and other supplies to thex. Always short of needs and
supplies and I had an ability to get that kind of thing togetiher. That led tc that
axful time when it locked like all my money wat cut aff. Two interesiing happenings
st the mame tine-~ my own relhives got into a feud and tied up the finances that belanged
t0 e and my business. And then our savings. A man that we trusied, Beemed 10 be a
humanitarian, ut whi we ister found out wes a crimipal wrb~had® esosped from America,
bat taken our savings as premration to putting thex in some phoney investments. 1 got
the money tack by taking him by the nal of the neck and threstening to throw him
out of a foureh story window. Wasn't wxacily & legal procedure. ] ran into his apariment,
£rabbed hin by the neck and smsshed him against the wall and aaid, "You give me my
saney back or you go out the fucking window.”

But in the meantime, bafore that, 1 had to scrape it togethar. Trat's where the
Arbessador's wife came in. She took & shine to me, and we had al) those kids to feed.
They were looking formard $o it, the food, and there was no mouey. The dratilians had
trisd to mke a go of this orphanage and achbol but they didn't have any resourees,
and 1 became the principal resource. B¢ this Anbapsddor's wife affered me a pile of
maney Af 1'd fuck her, sc I 4aid.

Thare is nothing 1o compare with the kind of revuision you feel shen you're lying
fext to somecne you loathe. And 1 lemthed har, and everything she stood for—~the
arrogance of wealth, the rucima, the u-ualty. 1 %:uk afterwards, 1 bad,

1,Igotﬂmemynnd.1bou¢ntf o‘mmd’lildrm.-fylnaethli
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Black and Brown children reached out to touch her dress t¢ thank her, she sratched
her akirt avay lest they contaminate her lily white self... I could've choked her.

Anyay, here 1 was cut off, couldn't hardly feed our own kids. 4 few envelopes
comlng in with a few dbllars, i that didn't even pay the rest on the apartment.
¥e had a oratilian lady staying with us because she was not able to work. She wantad
to, but there was no work. kisery, misery personified. Twe of her sons shot down by
the police.

‘nl:z:e wme nothing more 1 could do there, nothlig more. Brasll wae apathetic, the
pecple were amsthetlic, and the likelihood of the smergence af & military junta wms
strong. Got out of there Just in time, “ater, this lady who took care of our cat wrote
and said the right wing pollce came by the school, asking what happened to that
njesionary Jones. It was the right wing cops who 4id thelr owr vigilante wori. They
offed pecple from the Left, hundrede and hundreds. Took Justice in thelr own hands and
the people who they felt to meet Justlice were invariably revolutionaries. &nd 1'd
giver assistance to varlous people, underground people, Got theswuh—things, tangible
assistance 80 they could defsnd themselves, defand their lives. And ] preached Comxumigs
openly.

1 had a cclonel whom I was lnstructing ic English, and he wanted to know more and
more. He was po bourgeols that I didén't think he was an sagent. 1 think he was enchanted
by our faxily, and he bega- to de little things for ocur children, take thes oui on
Tides—~ we had no car of courser - He seemed fascinated by the fact that people would
line up at my door for food, we had & food line a block long. We'd get the food, and acee
we'd take to people, ané mome they'd line up for. He seemed to be turmed on to that,

80 1 began to presch his Communisz. As far as ] kmow, he never tizned me in unless it
was when the military dictatorship took over. At that point msybe he felt a0 much
Fressure that he had to. It wae never easy for hizm to accept ComEunisn, needless to
a2y. be put up every kind of argument, but eventually he admitted that i1 was the
huasne solution twt that he himself couldn't live under it, you know how that goes...
He seemed at the bottom & btasicly decent human scul so ] kind of doubt thati he ever
turned me io.

1t wms getting more and more right wing all the time in the military. It wms obvious.
I was called one time by & businesamar that I knew and he said, “Come over here, I want
you to see what's going on at the Embasey.® 50 1 went over to the U.S. Eatemsy, and stood
s uays off where I had & good view of one of the entérences, and the mrasilian military
leaders were coming and going, cosing and golng in a steady sireax. The junta wms
gathering... The man I was with said, ® Dark clouds are gathering over Zraril. There's
a real takeover 4o be made shorily.” Se sure ax hell knew wnzt he wms talking about...
4nd J got out of there Just ir time, I remember leaving,.ht sheomitport, wondering
whether 1 would get in troubie for what I'd been doing, revoluticacry-wise, in kragil,
when 1 got back t0 the #tates.The indecision of deciding whether Lo go or shether to
stay had me¢ sc traumatised that I thought my health would be seriously affected. It wms
awful.Duty calling me to stay-——saybe. Yet, I'm a foreigner, litile I could do, wrazilians
beginring toc becose apologists, mying they were afmid or didn't want to get involvea,
kennedy wmas just murdersd, and it locked to me like fascizs might be about to take over
the country. And it would be better for me to fight fascisa ip my owt country, rather
than Bragil, where my roots were pot that well establimhed, and my following waan't
that extensive, It was & mess. HSut that wes the decision. And 1 remeaber the anxiety
when we were mbout to land in the U.B., and I thought 1 would be framed, because, you
know, 1 didn't just hand out food in Rraeil.

1 vas clearly aware that agencies of the U.5. governmant followed an pursued your
sctivities, Une thing stands out clearly, although I know Lits easy to get caught up
in phantoms. Questions were asked at places 1 had vimited, and one graxilian family
was questiicoed extensively mbout xy activities vy AID officials. AID must've played
q signifieant role in CIA activities.

Braeil ks - J a place of such desperate poverty. but it was a stiange thing for
fescisx to take over in crmeil, fasciem of such & brutsl nsture. People theamselves
had » streak of real kindness. Kldnappers would invariably be caught because they'd
almys be calling up the faxiliss of the victims, asking what to feed the kid and at
what time, And if a fight would break out in the street, a whole crowd would rush
in to break it up. Fighiing seemed to be deeply offensive. Never had had a violent
revolution. They had Vargas who wms considered a dictator, but a great friend of the
people, and he did some benevolent things fir people in terms of marctuary. oot in all
thoee thangeovers tnere never was a bloodmth. So the Brazilisns just had to oe trained
from the outside, from the U.5., to become 0 brytal in their torture methodology.

It ms obviourly isporiasd.

And ther there was one puy that I knew growing up in Richacnd, a cruel, cruel
Parson, even as & kid,a viclows recist—Dar Mitrione. I'd hesrd of his nefarious activities
ic pells Horesonte, and I thought "I1'11 omse this man out.” ] wesn't really inclined
to 40 hin in, not.me, persanally, but I certainly was inciined to inform on his activities
to svarybody oo the lLeft.

JIRY
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But he wouldn't see ma. 1 maw his faxlly and they were arrogantly anti-crasilian;
nasty reactions of the children towmards wrasilisng,blacks #ic. ke was supposed to oe
& traffic advisor. He sas known in pells Horomonte -by everybody to be momething
other than a mere traffic advisor.There were rumars that he particijaisd with the
military sven then, doing strange things to dissentars. These military pecple, police
peoplie who had their after hours vigllantes— peo ple disappeared and were killed,
tortured. Kitrione's name would come up freguently, later he appeared in Urugumy.

The Tupersmos claimed he wa& an advisor on foriure and I sure can find that cons
ceivable,although 1 have ne proof of it,

Right after I came btack from HBrarzil, the IRS began hounding we. Rapped on Ry ass
about taxes. Put me through four months of bullshi4, Do you kmow that while I wms gone
alnisters circuiated the rumor, and & chesp shit Black paper even printed it-—-that 1
hal beer in an insane asylum foT two years! Somebody really ought to write a goddamn
book, but I like to be honest in & goddssn book, You see all this cheap mhit where pecple
Bake themselves out to be Saint Jerowe or Pope Plus.

You know, I have anxieties about being caught in a bind. My life is not my owrn.

But having been cruelly let down by my own dad— when 1 neesded things, msic, eleswentary

things, ard they were not provided—- ] made & covenant that as lomg &s it appeared

someope headed me, I wouldn‘t let them down. I certainly wman't going to go out of the

way to encourage people to nesd me, but the need from the beginning was very heavy.

1 hope this doean't sound, presumptious, 1 umed ent it a8 & youngeter because 1
thay

B
.
was alwnye the guy who g0t the kide together, didn't like it becsuse 1 had o

agsuke 80 much of the planning, 50 1 died wery to the need for reinforcement from
People. 1 can't oven Temeaber when I had a real for pecple.

Yeah. 11 mem't a setter of whether people a izted it or whather, wher they got
through with you they tosssd you aside llke an orange with a}l the juice mqueezed out.
1 expected that, but I thought, "I may pot be a person of great talent, but one thing
I conld give was loyalty.

1 don't see how you can build a society, in.a world with all the warfare-state,

I don!t see how you can build anything withoul loyalty, commlitment.It's easy to talk
about grest Marxist idead but unless they're laplemented by tasic loyzlties to family,

an extended faxily,(and, unfortunately 1 can see how a persoc would sell out more
sxtended commitimerts becsuse of fear for one's own children) unless that's the case,

all those theories aren't worth shit. My achilles heel is seting Ay stands causing more
pain for people after 1's gone. Obvicusly that’s shy I came here— not to start a
guerilla war like some of these idiots are suggesting back in the U.5. According to

aome Tolks I1'm supposed to be s Che Guevara on the South American continent. Shit. I mean,
1 know something of street wmrfare, I could've made... I mman I oan think of a pusber

of siaple 1ittle devices that could throw a city into havoc. 1 could've tare up

Ban Francisco, if I°'¢ wanted to give myself to a futile guerilla mctivity. dovway, 1 cane
here to give these people some order to their lives. Surely not expecting that there would
be total peace. Bui at least here there sre options. In the U.5. raciza wus very
apparantly coming 4o & heas— ever tack in the sarly sixties, it ws obvious the gystes
Wasn't working, Americs was losing. Xot & land of opportunity tut just the - opposite

and getting worse everyday. Bc that's why I went to frexil, why I visited Guyana tmck
thep too—Ilokking for- options.

For years I've felt that the anly wy you could function in the U.5. was to be
coapromised. Sellout.And I don't like the way some euphemive "wellout™ snd call it
:;pediency of the moment or “revolutionary strategy™. 1 found o many pecple mho may,

ell such and such is not opportune for the present, but later it will be..." and I
find out soon that they've lost all their principles. I didn®t want to risk that happening
1o those around me, And I certainly didn't see how violence was going to be productive.
RBevolutionary change wad not ready in the Upited States, mnd T did not believe the last
vestizge of memopoly capitaliss was golng to give up its scat easily. ¥Violence doesn't
come easy far me anywy— I've sean viclance misused by all sides of the political
apecirus, and by mature I'm non-viclent. I's & reasouing animsl. But its hard to
:ck:cile the duties of & leader or a revolutiomary with your own physical snd emotionsl

uP.

Farticularly I find not sc such the emoticnal——by nature I's & depressed persan. I'we
lived with depresaicn for many, many, asny ywars. The protlea I find is the siample
clinical thing of keeping the body functioning amidat sl the tension. Yesterday, when
la-emepuhouodunrpiamndlmﬂmwmepimn.lndmttladﬂﬂatho-em:
te hold them down, to get the antidote down their thromts, that helped reduce some of the
tension. In thet soment of crieis, there was a 1ot of strenucus physical involvement

which relieves & lot of tensione and giver the mind ¢ respite. I got wy first real, solid

reat in a long shile,after that, lying, as you know, on the bed in here. Took off the

preasure of thinking. Damn concientious in sy thinking. Analyze all the . If 1. 40m"t

momentarily, I will later reflsct, analyse. leadsr tan'i be trusted Af he {ar she)
dosan't know what he's thinking all the damn time, snd why...

0
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WCBufore we left Indiana we weres getting ourselves--I think we were
being targeted back then by some form of organized harssment, IRS
bothersd us for months, FBI interrogated me, ind then we got shot at
regularly,

One night there was a regular battle around bur home. We were getting
shot at and a couple of us were firing back. This was in Indiana just
after I resigned as Director of the Mayor's Commission on Human Rights.

I had a radio program at the time and I wae denouncing the Bible. Got
hate calls &1) the time, threats. Thie night 1t went further and our
home was belng shot at, Molotov cocktails thrown on the roof. The
police éidn*t come. Shooting £going on in the inner city, and all this
hell ralsing commotion going on and no cops. It seemed mighty welird at
the time.It was a regular battle, and it went on for hours.

Then this “lack man comes up on me and tries to stadb me, He must've
been high because he just grared my shoulder. Said he was pald five dollars
1 thought this is fucking weird., All this shit going on and no cops.

“Get out of here, man" I sid. “I's not going to press charges. Get
eut of here.,®

Pecple came out of the house and hustled him into the back. Hardly
got the guy in the weeds, hid out, when up screams the cop cars.

One of the pigs says, "] here there's been an attempted murder
here. A Black man reported it.=
I said, *That's mighty interesating.” It was~~ we'd just gotten
the fugker hid, The timing was too fucking close,..

S0 1 think there was some kind of conspiracy there, maybe just pelice
level. It seemed awfully, awfully odd that for all those hours &ll that
shooting was going on-- and not a fucking cop in sight. Called the police
and they didn*t come, And then, within minutes of thls poor bastard‘s
attexpt on me, up come the cops--~so slficient, so goncerned. Shit,

That was a wild night. Patty come up to the door, and no more than
got "hi" out of her mouth when--zing! This bullet flys by her head. Phone
ringing all night with epople talking in tongues, doing what they call
reading the devil out of you. And then they'd say "¥We're gonns kill you.*
Mice Christians.

I had this brosdcast st ten'o'clock that night. Came out of the build-
ing and a car chased me down the street, tried to run me down.Some-
body was ufter our ass, that's for sure. Amd just around the same time some
praacher stole one 0f our member's deeds and stirred up some ahit trying
to get her declared insane so yhey could take her property--because she
was going to sell her property and move with me to California. Had to
drag her to three different psychiatriste so her folks wouldn*t have
her locked up. And the presacher who stole her deeds and engineered that
shit had been picked up for sexually viclating a three year old. All the
charges dropped of course, becmuse he was a good capitalist Christian.

S0 You see, I've beeann through thie shit before. This is like a re-run
of Indiana only on & much bigger scale.

Why did we move to Californie? I guese it had something to do with
the syndrome of *Go West.” I figured it was the furthest point I could
go from Indiana before I fell off into the ocean. There was hope, but
there certainly wasn't s blind pellyannnishness. I'd heard there was
more scceptance there., {alifornias was suppomsd to be more liberal.

So we had to go. Things in Indisna were getting too bad. We were painted

in a corner. Harassing the hell out of us. Radioc station I was on being
threatened in all kinds of ways. Bible belt pecple put such a pressure that
advertisers absclutely were going to Quit advertizing if I were not
removed, Until finally the station manager had to say " I'm sorry,

but I just have tocancel iour program.” WBIC I think. I'd been on lLhere
for years, but I was getting toec political, toc much against the Bible.
There ware some inetrracial relationships in the church, adoptions,
marraiges. I really wanted out--bad, Bui when people showed interest,l
couldn't ignore them and go off on my own, I 4id want to try life for
ayselfand my family--=there was & part of me that wanted to do¢ thay

very, very badly, But no way. It ended up this and that, and I looked aroun
and saw that they were all my feaily. Humanity is my fsmily, Whatever
compells one. And 1t jen't all gullt. I talk about guilt because Americans
won't relate to guilt, have been conditioned to feel no guilt for any~
thing. But there is s profound gense of concern and care for people that

I do have, for people that had nobody.
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That's the blggest thing that obeesses me about being human-- to
be able to cope with loving people and know you can't love them in
terme of fulfilling thelr needs.ind if love lsn't demonstrated it
isn"t worth a shit, 5o there are always needs,problems that are not
being met. You can never fully meet peopls heede. The peple who are
helping you sre in misery— so ewrything is pain to me. If your
associates approach your standard of caring, thet sgonizes you because
You know the burden that means for them. And then the psople who are
80 caught up in themselves, well, nothing satisfies them, sc they
are never happy. Pecple are such strenge creatures. You've got to have
an alr of mystery. Honeety, concern, gentleneas, doesn't seem %o
move them. Most people show their natural sel! when they're nesr
death. And, as I don't see a long range future, I can be myself. I take
i1 one day at & time.

Anyway, we moved to California, and it wasn't shit tiwme before I
folt gullty about it, because there were still kide in the ghetto. The
guilt came almost immedistely, and I felt out of place almost immediately.
1 got more and more into metropplitan concerns. It wasn't to whip up
money like these pricke are saying in the newspapers, Grace Stoen saying
I said * The big money’'s in town.® I could kill her. I never made a
staement like that, I never made a statement anything like that. I
probably said something 1ike "There's more we can do, and there may be some
pepple whoe will come and glve offeringes even if they don*t give anything
¢lse of thelr times,” But that cold goddamn way mhe puts stuff.Please,
please if you ever write anything about my life st all, please include how
wuch I hate that bitch, how I've always hated her-- the sight of her was
sicke to me from the beginming. God how I hated her and her stupid,
destructive, juvenile ways. Please incInde that, though I don't suppose
aryone will ever understand it, I hated thet bitch from the start. So
fucking arrogant and insensitive, Ehe's skt in service, combing her hair
in front of her face while Black people poured their hearts out sbout
suffering... I kmow I will never glve her that kid--gmy kid. T ¢an't
let my John go back to her, It would be the grossest of inhumanity.

It wasn*t long before 1 was in the city. Church was golng on, people
lived their little arian lives, but I was involved in the City. I think
we'd just barely built our bullding when I went down toc 5.F, and held a
meeting in Macedonia Baptist Church., But even before Macedonian we were
going to Caklend, trying to get in tough with the city. Crowds didn't
start coming til I went to Macedonia gnd tore up that playhcuse. I hoped
that I could build up in the Redwood ¥aliey are so that senlors and child-
ren could come up khere. There was alwys the ecbject of course of bringing in
more people so we'd have 2 larger mmber and mayba wouldn't get harassed
as much, I wanted to get older people and children out of the Clty-- bring
thexm up every week s¢ they could swim in the pool, get some frosh air,

It wasn't mercenary like that bitch says. I £ ed 1f we were going to
be in ths country we could at least share it. I had guests in my home
all the time, Chiléren that were there from the city. All through the
whitle fucking Valley our people €id that. And then they began to come up
there to live and go tc schocl, even if thelr familles didn't come. A1l
those people without guardianships at first, Shit, ite a lucky thing we
made 1. So much of our operation was just trust,

But Redwood Valley in its bigotry was almost like & repeat of what
we went through in Indiana. Dntll the wery trees in that Valley, and there
could be not more gorgeous than that Valley, except, perhaps, this
Jungle, the very trees, everything 1 looked at, gave mme pain., Every tree,
svery flower. Pain. Pecple coming up behind the property. Caught one of
them once. Sneaking up, had a gun. Peopls don't believe any of this shit
aver happened,

Its smatring to me that any one who's ever set in my organication can
paint me as such s bad guy when I've plways talked about my guilt-- where
1 missed, where I faliled. Worried if I missed one person's hand when
golng down the sisle. If I went to visit one parson who was sick, I had
to visit them all. I 4id that for years until I just had to quit it, I
couldn®t take it, Those psoplae saw that. How can they rationslize that
a

I'd often stressed publically that I wished I'd never been born., I deeply
appreciate those who intellectually reassure me, but sure there are things
I would've dons over, & lot of things. But I never could live by any other
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guldelines, follow s &ifferent political i1deal, It's Just not right for
babies to go to bed hungry. That's unacceptable., And in spite of the
factionalism of Communism, and I*m no messianic worshipper-- I don't
worship st the altar of any rigid dogmep I believe every society hae to
find its own solutions--its own socialism, But whatever ¢ifficulty we

may face with nationaliem, with race, in the liberation of oppressed
peoples, its better to try for a right gonl tham to sees the selfishness
thai those who, once believing, have turned their backe on their ideals.
And 1've never met such cowards and hollow, conniving pecple, as exemplifier
by some who have left and who have become mo belligerant.
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